
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL 'BOARD 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
) 

Complainant, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ) 
ILLINOIS, INC., a Connecticut corporation, ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

No. 

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 

TO: SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that today, December 1,2010, I have ,filed with the Office of 
the Clerk of the Illinois Pollution Control Board by electronic filing theJollowing Complaint a 
true and correct copy of which is attached and hereby served upon you. 

Pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 103.204(f), I am required to state'that failure to file an 
answer to this Complaint within 60 days may have severe consequence~. Failure to answer will 
mean that all allegations in the Complaint will be taken as if admitted f9r purposes of this 
proceeding. If you have any questions about this procedure, you should contact the hearing 
officer assigned to this proceeding, the Clerk's Office or an attorney. i 

NOTIFICATION 

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that financing may be available through the Illinois 
Environmental Facilities Financing Act (20 ILCS 351511 et seq.) to correct the alleged pollution. 

BY: 

Date: December 1, 2010 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
by LISA MADIGAN, At(orney General 
of t te of)llinois 

George Theophi os 
Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Bureau ' 
69 W. Washington St., Suite 1800 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 814-6986 

I 

THIS FILING IS SUBMITTED ON RECYCLEQ PAPER 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, December 1, 2010 
          * * * * * PCB 2011-024 * * * * *



u.s. Chrome Corporation of 
Illinois, Inc. 
c/o CT Corporation System 
Registered Agent 
208 S. LaSalle St., Suite 814 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

SERVICE LIST 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, December 1, 2010 
          * * * * * PCB 2011-024 * * * * *



BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL I;30ARD 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
) 

Complainant, ) 
) 

v. ) No. 
) 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ) 
ILLINOIS, INC., a Connecticut corporation,) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENAL TIES' 

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney 

I 

General of the State of Illinois, complains of the Respondent, U.S. CHROME CORPORATION 
I 

OF ILLINOIS, INC., a Connecticut corporation, as follows: 

COUNT I 
-Construction of Emission Sources Without a Permit-

i 
1. This Complaint is brought on behalf of the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF 

ILLINOIS, ("Complainant "), by Lisa Madigan, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, on her 

, 
own motion and at the request of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA") 

pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 31 of the Illinois En\iironmental Protection Act 

("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (2010). 

2. The Illinois EPA is an administrative agency of the' State of Illinois, created 
i 

pursuant to Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2010), and charged, inter alia, with the duty of 

enforcing the Act. 

3. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent U;S. Chrome Corporation of 

Illinois, Inc. ("U.S. Chrome") was and is a Connecticut corporation do'ing business in the State of 
, 

Illinois at 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, December 1, 2010 
          * * * * * PCB 2011-024 * * * * *



its facility located at 305 Herbert Road, Herbert, Boone County, Illinois'61244 ("Facility"). 

4. As a part of its Facility operations, U.S. Chrome conducts hard chromium 

electroplating operations including the treatment and coating of metal surfaces. 

5. On May 31, 2002, the Illinois EPA received from' U.S. Chrome a permit 

application to construct and operate one chromium electroplating tank and one composite mesh 

pad ("CMP") system utilized to control chromium emissions generated during electroplating 

operations. The application stated, in part, that existing chromium electroplating Tank 8 would 

be removed from service and replaced with a larger size tank controlled by existing CMP Unit 5. 

6. On October 21,2002, the Illinois EPA issued to U.S. Chrome construction permit 

number 02050088 for U.S. Chrome to construct Tank 8, but denied U.~. Chrome's application to 

revise lifetime operating permit number 75040121 on the grounds that the application did not 

contain performance testing data to demonstrate compliance with the National Emission 

Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAP") applicable to hard chromium electroplating 

operations, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N. 

7. On January 9, 2003, the Illinois EPA received from U.S. Chrome an application 

to revise Lifetime Operating Permit 75040121. On April 1, 2003, the Illinois EPA received 

information supplementing U.S. Chrome's January 9, 2003 application explaining, in part, that 

as chromium electroplating Tank 8 that is the subject of construction permit number 02050088 

was not constructed, the application was not requesting that this new emission source be 

included within the existing lifetime operating permit. 

8. On April 9, 2003, Illinois EPA issued to U.S. Chrome, Lifetime Operating Permit 

75040121 authorizing the operation of thirteen (13) hard chromium electroplating tanks and five 

(5) three-stage CMP chromium separators, excluding new chromium electroplating Tank 8. 
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9. On September 23, 2008, the Illinois EPA inspected the Facility for compliance 

with the Act and the NESHAP requirements for hard chromium eledtroplating operations, 40 

CFR Part 63, Subpart N. During the inspection, Illinois EPA observed that U.S. Chrome had 

converted one existing tank from a cleaner tank to a hard chromium electroplating tank, 

designated as Tank 9; connected CMP Unit 5 to both the Tank 9 and existing Tank 8 to control 
, 

chromium emissions generated during the operation of both tanks; arid, operated Tank 9 for a 

limited time period, commencing on or about July 1, 2008 -- all without having first obtained 
I 

Illinois EPA-issued construction and operating permits. 

I 

10. Illinois EPA further determined that the Facility: failed to conduct performance 

testing required by the NESHAP for hard chromium electroplating operations (40 CFR Part 63, 

Subpart N) to demonstrate chromium emissions generated during the 6peration of the converted 

electroplating tank were in compliance with the emission standard sl?ecified by the NESHAP; 

failed to monitor operation of the converted chromium electroplating tank controlled by CMP 

Unit 5 to ensure continuous compliance with the NESHAP hard chromium emission standards 
I 

(40 CFR 63.342), failed to submit an initial notification informing the Illinois EPA that operation 

of the converted chromium electroplating tank had become subject to the hard chromium plating 

NESHAP requirements (40 CFR 63.9); and failed to maintain records: required by the NESHAP 

for chromium electroplating operations involving Tank 9, 40 CFR 63. roo 

11. On December 10, 2008, Illinois EPA issued a violation notice ("VN") letter to 
I 

U.S. Chrome, citing violations of the NESHAP for hard chromium eI'ectroplating (40 CFR Part 

I 

63, Subpart N), the Act, and regulations thereunder resulting from: the modifications and 

operation of an existing emissions source without first applying for and obtaining Illinois EPA-

issued construction and operating permits; the failure to pay the requisite construction permit fee, 
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maintain records, submit reports, and conduct performance testing pr~scribed by the NESHAP 
, 

for hard chromium electroplating,40 CFR Part 63, Subpart N. 

12. On or about January 19,2009, U.S. Chrome responded to the VN by submitting a 
I 

joint construction and lifetime operating permit application, an initial notification report, a 

I 

construction permit fee payment in the amount of $500.00, and a 2007 :AER stating, in part, that 

U.S. Chrome assumed operation of the converted cleaner tank was' authorized by operating 

permit 75040121 as the permit allowed for the operation of 13 chromium electroplating tanks. In 

addition, the Illinois EPA was informed that, in January 2009, U.S. Chrome installed chromium 

electroplating Tank 10 to replace chromium electroplating Tank 1. Further, U.S. Chrome's joint 

I 

construction and lifetime operating permit application stated that emission sources for which a 
I 

construction permit were being sought had already been constructed by-the Facility. 

13. On February 18,2009, the Illinois EPA issued a notice of incompleteness ("NOI") 

to U.S. Chrome informing the Facility that the application had failed to set forth information 

clearly identifying all emission sources and air pollution control equipment utilized by the 

Facility and failed to provide the emissions data necessary to support the emissions limits being 
I 

requested by the Facility. 

I 

14. On April 7, 2009, U.S. Chrome submitted a joint app!ication for a construction 

permit and a revised Lifetime Operating Permit, requesting, in part, a lifetime operating permit 

allowing the operation of seven chromium electroplating tanks. 

15. On May 4, 2009, the Illinois EPA issued to U.S. Chfome a notice of intent to 

pursue legal action ("NIPLA") for U.S. Chrome's: failure to apply fo~ and obtain a permit prior 

to constructing chromium electroplating Tank 10; failure to conduct performance testing after 

converting one cleaner tank to a chromium electroplating tank controlled by CMP Unit 5; failure 
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to submit initial notifications; and failure to maintain documenting CMP monitoring data. 

16. On June 16, 2009, U.S. Chrome submitted additional information amending its 

I 

April 7, 2009 permit application to include chromium electroplating Tap!< 10 controlled by CMP 

System 4S. 

17. On June 29, 2009, the Illinois EPA denied the application requesting a permit to , 

construct chromium electroplating Tanks 9.1 and 10 because the application stated that Tanks 

9.1 and 10 were constructed by the Facility prior to June 16, 2009, on a date better known by 
I 

Respondent. 

18. On June 29, 2009, Illinois EPA issued a revised Lifetime Operating Permit 

I 

75040121 authorizing the operation of eight chromium electroplating tanks, including the 
, 

converted chromium electroplating tank, designated as Tank 9.1, and chromium electroplating 
I 

Tank 10, controlled by five CMP systems or alternatively, fume suppre,ssant containing a wetting 

agent. 

19. Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2010, provfdes, as follows: 

"Person" is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, 
limited liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, 
trust, estate, political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or 
their legal representative, agent or assigns. 

20. The Respondent, a Connecticut corporation, is a "person" as that term is defined 

in Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2002). 

21. Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2010), pro\rides, in pertinent part, as 

follows: 

No person shall: 

(b) Construct, install, or operate any equipment, facility, vehicle, vessel, or 
aircraft capable of causing or contributing to air pollution or designed to 
prevent air pollution, of any type designated by Board ~egulations, without 
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, 
a permit granted by the Agency, or in violation of any conditions imposed 
by such permit. . 

* * * 
22. Section 201.142 of the Illinois Pollution Control Boarq ("Board") Air Pollution 

Control Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142, provides, as follows: 

No person shall cause or allow the construction of any new emission 
source or any new air pollution control equipment, or yause or allow the 
modification of any existing emission source or air I pollution control 
equipment, without first obtaining a construction permit from the Agency, 
except as provided in Sections 201.146 or Section 20 1.170(b) of this Part. 

23. Section 201.102 of the Board's Air Pollution Control Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 201.102, provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

"Emission Source": any equipment or facility of a type capable of emitting 
specified air contaminants to the atmosphere. 

* * * 

"New Air Pollution Control Equipment": Any air I pollution control 
equipment, the construction or modification of which is commenced on or 
after April 14, 1972. 

New Emission Source": any emission source, th,e construction or 
modification of which is commenced on or after April 14, 1972. 

24. Respondent's chromium electroplating tanks are "emis'sion source[s]," and "new 

emission source[s]," as those terms are defined in 35 Ill. Adm. 201.102. 

I 

25. Since 2002, on one or more dates better known to the Respondent, Respondent 

constructed or modified chromium electroplating Tanks 9.1 and 10 at the Facility, without first 

having applied for or obtained construction permits from Illinois EP A.! 

26. By constructing or modifying chromium electroplatin~ Tanks 9.1 and 10 at the 

Facility, without first having applied for and/or obtained construction 'permits from Illinois EPA. 

6 
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Respondent violated 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142 and thereby violated' Section 9(b) of the Act, 

415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count I: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time: the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated 35 Ill. Adm. ~ode 201.142 and thereby 

also violated Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b); 

I 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 201.142 and Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b); 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 
I 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent Board Air Pollution Control Regulations, 

and an additional civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) fpr each day of violation; 

5. Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section 42'(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/42(f), including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees, against the Respondent; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT II 
-Operation of Emission Sources Without a Permit-

1. - 23. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 

21 and paragraphs 23 and 24 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through 23 o[;this Count II. 

I 

24. Section 201.143 of the Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.143, provides, as 

follows: 
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No person shall cause or allow the operation of any new emission source 
or new air pollution control equipment of a type for which a construction 
permit is required by Section 201.142 without first obtaining an operating 
permit from the Agency, except for such testing operations as may be 
authorized by the construction permit. Applications for operating permits 
shall be made at such times and contain such information (in addition to 
the information required by Section 201.157) as shall be specified in the 
construction permit. 

25. Since 2002, on one or more dates better known to the Respondent, Respondent 

has operated one or more new emission sources or new air pollution control equipment (i.e., 

Tanks 9.1 and 10) at the Facility without having first obtained operating permits from Illinois 

EPA in accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.143 and Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) 

(2010). 

26. By operating chromium electroplating Tanks 9.1 and 10 at the Facility, prior to 

obtaining operating permits from Illinois EPA. Respondent violated 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.143 

and thereby also violated Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE Of ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count II: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.143 and Section 

9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b); 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 201.143 and Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b); 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent Board Air Pol~ution Control Regulations, 
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and an additional civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation; 

5. Taxing all costs in this action pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/42(f), including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees, against the Respondent; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT III 

-Failure to Conduct Performance Testing and Implement Monitoring, Recordkeeping and 
Reporting Measures as Required Under NESHAP-

1. - 20. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 

through 20 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through 20 of this Count III. 

21. Section 9.1 (d)(1) and (2) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d)(1) and (2) (2010), 

provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

(d) No person shall: 

(1) violate any provisions of Sections 111, 112, 165 or 173 of the Clean 
Air Act, as now or hereafter amended, or federal regulations adopted 
pursuant thereto; or 

(2) construct, install, modify or operate any equipment, building, facility, 
source or installation which is subject to regulation under Sections 111, 
112, 165 or 173 of the Clean Air Act, as now or hereafter amended, except 
in compliance with the requirements of such Sections and federal 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and no such action shall be 
undertaken without a permit granted by the Agency or in violation of any 
conditions imposed by such permit. Any denial of such a permit or any 
conditions imposed in such a permit shall be reviewable by the Board in 
accordance with Section 40 of this Act. 

22. Section 63.340 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations provides, in part, as 

follows: 

(a) The affected source to which the provisions of this subpart [N] apply is 
each chromium electroplating or chromium anodizing tank at facilities 
performing hard chromium electroplating, decorative chromium 
electroplating, or chromium anodizing. 
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I 

(b) Owners or operators of affected sources subject to the provisions of 
this subpart [N] must also comply with the requirements of subpart A of 
this part, according to the applicability of subpart A of this part to such 
sources, as identified in Table 1 of this subpart. 

* * * 

23. The Facility is subject to the requirements 40 C.F.R. Pari 63, Subpart N. 

24. Section 63.7 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulatiqns provides, in part, as 

follows: 

(a) Applicability and performance test dates. 

* * * 

(2) Except as provided in paragraph (a)(4) of this section, ifrequired to do 
performance testing by a relevant standard, and u~less a waiver of 
performance testing is obtained under this section or: the conditions of 
paragraph (c)(3)(ii)(B) of this section apply, the owner or operator of the 
affected source must perform such tests within 180 days of the compliance 
date for such source. 

25. Section 63.343 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulfltions provides, in 
I 

pertinent part, as follows: 

(a) Compliance dates ... 

* * * 
(2) The owner or operator of a new or reconstructed ~ffected source that 
has an initial startup after January 25, 1995, shall comply immediately 
upon startup of the source .... 

* * * 

(b) Methods to demonstrate initial compliance. 

(1) Except as provided in paragraphs (b)(2) and (b)(3) of this section, an 
owner or operator of an affected source subject to the requirements of this 
subpart is required to conduct an initial performance test as required under 
§63.7, except for hard chromium electroplaters and chromium anodizing 
operations in California which have until January 25, 1998, using the 
procedures and test methods listed in §§63.7 and 63.344. 
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(2) If the owner or operator of an affected source Imeets all of the 
following criteria, an initial performance test is not required to be 
conducted under this subpart: 

(i) The affected source is a hard chromium electroplating tank, a 
decorative chromium electroplating tank or a chromium anodizing tank; 
and 

(ii) A wetting agent is used in the plating or anodizing bath to inhibit 
chromium emissions from the affected source; and 

(iii) The owner or operator complies with the applicable surface tension 
limit of §63 .342( c)(1 )(iii), (c )(2)(iii), or (d)(2) as demonstrated through the 
continuous compliance monitoring required by paragraph (c)(5)(ii) of this 
section. 

(3) If the affected source is a decorative chromium electroplating tank 
using a trivalent chromium bath, and the owner or operator is subject to 
the provisions of §63.342(e), an initial performance test is not required to 
be conducted under this subpart. I 

* * * 

(c) Monitoring to demonstrate continuous compliance. The owner or 
operator of an affected source subject to the emission'limitations of this 
subpart shall conduct monitoring according to the type of air pollution 
control technique that is used to comply with the emission limitation. The 
monitoring required to demonstrate continuous compliance with the 
emission limitations. is identified in this section for the air pollution 
control techniques expected to be used by the owners or operators of 
affected sources. 

(1) Composite mesh-pad systems. 

(i) During the initial performance test, the owner or operator of an affected 
source, or a group of affected sources under common control, complying 
with the emission limitations in §63.342 through the \lse of a composite 
mesh-pad system shall determine the outlet chromium concentration using 
the test methods and procedures in §63.344(c), and shall establish as a 
site-specific operating parameter the pressure drop across the system, 
setting the value that corresponds to compliance with the applicable 
emission limitation, using the procedures in §63.344(<;l)(5). An owner or 
operator may conduct multiple performance tests to establish a range of 
compliant pressure drop values, or may set as the compliant value the 
average pressure drop measured over the three test runs of one 
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performance test and accept ±2 inches of water column from this value as 
the compliant range. 

I 

25. U.S. Chrome was required to conduct an initial performance test after start-up of 

chromium electroplating Tank 9.1 as the exceptions provided in 40, CFR §63.343 were not 

applicable to it. 

26. U.S. Chrome failed to conduct an initial performance test after startup of 

chromium electroplating Tank 9.1 in accordance with the requirements set forth in 40 C.F.R. 

§§63.7 and 63.343 to demonstrate chromium emissions generated during the tank's operation are 

in compliance with the emissions standard specified by 40 C.F.R. §63.342. 

27. By failing to conduct an initial performance test a~er startup of chromium 

electroplating Tank 9.1 in accordance with the requirements set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§63.7 and 

63.343, U.S. Chrome violated 40 CFR §§63.7 and 63.343 and therrby also violated Section 

9.1(d) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE Of ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count III: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter, at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated 40 C.F.R. §§63.7 and 63.343 and 

Section 9 .1 (d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 .1 (d); 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of 40 

C.F.R. §§63.7 and 63.343 and Section 9.1(d) of the Act; 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, alld an additional civil 
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penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, including attor~ey, expert witness and 

consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT IV 
-Failure to Maintain Proper Records-

1. - 23. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 

through 23 of Count III as paragraphs 1 through 23 of this Count IV. 

24. Section 63.346 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations provides, in 

pertinent part, as follows: 

(a) The owner or operator of each affected source subject to these 
standards shall fulfill all recordkeeping requirements outlined in this 
section and in the General Provisions to 40 CFR part 6f, according to the 
applicability of subpart A of this part as identified in Table 1 of this 
subpart. 

(b) The owner or operator of an affected source subject to the provisions 
of this subpart shall maintain the following records for such source: 

(1) Inspection records for the add-on air pollution control device, if such a 
device is used, and monitoring equipment, to document that the inspection 
and maintenance required by the work practice standards of §63.342(f) 
and Table 1 of §63.342 have taken place. The record can take the form of 
a checklist and should identify the device inspected, the date of inspection, 
a brief description of the working condition of the device during the 
inspection, and any actions taken to correct deficiencies found during the 
inspection. 

(2) Records of all maintenance performed on the affect~d source, the add
on air pollution control device, and monitoring equipment; 

(3) Records of the occurrence, duration, and cause (if known) of each 
malfunction of process, add-on air pollution contrql, and monitoring 
equipment; 

(4) Records of actions taken during periods of malf}mction when such 
actions are inconsistent with the operation and maintenance plan; 
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(5) Other records, which may take the form of checklists, necessary to 
demonstrate consistency with the provisions of the operation and 
maintenance plan required by §63.342(t)(3); 

(6) Test reports documenting results of all performance tests; 

(7) All measurements as may be necessary to determine the conditions of 
performance tests, including measurements necessary to determine 
compliance with the special compliance procedures of §63.344(e); 

(8) Records of monitoring data required by §63.343(c) that are used to 
demonstrate compliance with the standard including the date and time the 
data are collected; 

(9) The specific identification (i.e., the date and time of commencement 
and completion) of each period of excess emissions, as indicated by 
monitoring data, that occurs during malfunction of the process, add-on air 
pollution control, or monitoring equipment; 

(10) The specific identification (i.e., the date and time of commencement 
and completion) of each period of excess emissions, as indicated by 
monitoring data, that occurs during periods other than malfunction of the 
process, add-on air pollution control, or monitoring equipment; 

(11) The total process operating time of the affected source during the 
reporting period; 

(12) Records of the actual cumulative rectifier capacity of hard chromium 
electroplating tanks at a facility expended during each month of the 
reporting period, and the total capacity expended to date for a reporting 
period, if the owner or operator is using the actual cumulative rectifier 
capacity to determine facility size in accordance with §63.342(c)(2); 

(13) For sources using fume suppressants to comply with the standards, 
records of the date and time that fume suppressants are added to the 
electroplating or anodizing bath; 

(14) For sources complying with §63.342(e), records of the bath 
components purchased, with the wetting agent clearly identified as a bath 
constituent contained in one of the components; 

(15) Any information demonstrating whether a source is meeting the 
requirements for a waiver of recordkeeping or reporting requirements, if 
the source has been granted a waiver under §63.1 OCt); and 

14 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, December 1, 2010 
          * * * * * PCB 2011-024 * * * * *



(16) All documentation supporting the notifications and reports required 
by §63.9, §63.l0, and §63.347. 

25. Since 2002, on one or more dates better known to the Respondent, U.S. Chrome 

failed to maintain the records required by 40 C.F.R. §63.346. 

26. By failing to maintain the records required by 40 C.F.R. §63.346, U.S. Chrome 

violated 40 CFR §63.346 and thereby also violated Section 9.1 (d) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5/9.1 (d) 

(2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count IV: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter, at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated 40 C.F.R. §63.346 and Section 9.1(d) of 

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d); 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of 40 

C.F.R. §63.346 and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.l(d); 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, and an additional civil 

penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, including attorney, expert witness and 

consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropri~te and just. 
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COUNT V 
-Failure to Prepare and Submit Notifications of Compliance Status-

1. - 23. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs I 

through 23 of Count III as paragraphs 1 through 23 of this Count V. 

24. Section 63.347 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations provides, In 

pertinent part, as follows: 

(a) The owner or operator of each affected source subject to these 
standards shall fulfill all reporting requirements outlined in this section 
and in the General Provisions to 40 CFR part 63, according to the 
applicability of subpart A as identified in Table 1 of this subpart. These 
reports shall be made to the Administrator at the appropriate address as 
identified in §63 .13 or to the delegated State authority ... ; 

I 

(b) The reporting requirements of this section apply to the owner or 
operator of an affected source when such source becomes subject to the 
provisions of this subpart .... 

* * * 

(e) Notification of compliance status. 

(1) A notification of compliance status is required each time that an 
affected source becomes subject to the requirements of this subpart. 

I 

(2) If the State in which the source is located has not been delegated the 
authority to implement the rule, each time a notification of compliance 
status is required under this part, the owner or operator of an affected 
source shall submit to the Administrator a notification of compliance 
status, signed by the responsible official (as defined in §63.2) who shall 
certify its accuracy, attesting to whether the affected source has complied 
with this subpart. If the State has been delegated the authority, the 
notification of compliance status shall be submitted to the appropriate 
authority. The notification shall list for each affected so~rce: 

(i) The applicable emission limitation and the methods that were used to 
determine compliance with this limitation; 

(ii) If a performance test is required by this subp~, the test report 
documenting the results of the performance test, which contains the 
elements required by §63.344(a), including measurements and calculations 
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to support the special compliance provisions of §63.344(e) if these are 
being followed; 

(iii) The type and quantity of hazardous air pollutants emitted by the 
source reported in mg/dscm or mg/hr if the source is using the special 
provisions of §63.344(e) to comply with the standards. (If the owner or 
operator is subject to the construction and reconstruction provisions of 
§63.345 and had previously submitted emission estimates, the owner or 
operator shall state that this report corrects or verifies the previous 
estimate.) For sources not required to conduct a performance test in 
accordance with §63.343(b), the surface tension measurement may fulfill 
this requirement; 

(iv) For each monitored parameter for which a compliant value is to be 
established under §63.343(c), the specific operating parameter value, or 
range of values, that corresponds to compliance with the applicable 
emission limit; 

(v) The methods that will be used to determine continuous compliance, 
including a description of monitoring and reporting requirements, if 
methods differ from those identified in this subpart; 

(vi) A description of the air pollution control technique for each emission 
point; 

(vii) A statement that the owner or operator has completed and has on file 
the operation and maintenance plan as required by the work practice 
standards in §63.342(f); 

(viii) If the owner or operator is determining facility size based on actual 
cumulative rectifier capacity in accordance with §63.342(c)(2), records to 
support that the facility is small. For existing sources, records from any 
12-month period preceding the compliance date shall be used or a 
description of how operations will change to meet a small designation 
shall be provided. For new sources, records of projected rectifier capacity 
for the first 12-month period of tank operation shall be used; 

(ix) A statement by the owner or operator of the affected source as to 
whether the source has complied with the provisions of this subpart. 

(3) For sources required to conduct a performance test by §63.343(b), the 
notification of compliance status shall be submitted to the Administrator 
no later than 90 calendar days following completion of the compliance 
demonstration required by §63.7 and §63.343(b). 
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(4) For sources that are not required to complete a performance test in 
accordance with §63.343(b), the notification of compliaI1ce status shall be 
submitted to the Administrator no later than 30 days after the compliance 
date specified in §63.343(a), except the date on which sources in 
California shall monitor the surface tension of the anodizing bath is 
extended to January 25, 1998. 

25. Since 2002, on one or more dates better known to the Respondent, U.S. Chrome 

failed to prepare and submit to the administrator a complete and, accurate notification of 

compliance status as required by 40 CFR §63.347(e). 

26. By failing to prepare and submit to the administrator 'a complete and accurate 

notification of compliance status as required by 40 CFR §63.347(e), U.S. Chrome violated 40 

CFR §63.347(e) and also violated Section 9.1 (d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d) (2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE O~ ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count V: ' 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter, at which time the Respondent will be 
I 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated 40 C.F.R. §63.347 and Section 9.1 (d) of 

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9 .1 (d); 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of 40 

C.F.R. § 63.347 and Section 9.1(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d); 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulatiol1s, and an additional civil 

penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, including attorney, expert witness and 

consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 
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6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT VI 
-Failure to Submit the Requisite Construction Permit Fee-

1. - 23. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 

21 and paragraphs 23 and 24 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through 23 of thIs Count VI. 

24. Section 9.12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.12 (2010), provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows: 

(a) An applicant for a new or revised air pollution construction permit 
shall pay a fee, as established in this Section, to the Agency at the time 
that he or she submits the application for a construction permit. Except as 
set forth below, the fee for each activity or category listed in this Section 
is separate and is cumulative with any other applicable fee listed in this 
Section. 

25. U.S. Chrome failed to submit to the Illinois EPA the requisite construction permit 

fees prior to constructing two hard chromium electroplating tanks. 

26. By failing to submit to the Illinois EPA the requisite, construction permit fees 

prior to constructing two hard chromium electroplating tanks, U.S. Chrome violated Section 9.12 

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.12 (2010). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter a judgment in favor of Complainant and against the Respondent, 

U.S. CHROME CORPORATION OF ILLINOIS, INC., on Count VI : ' 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter, at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 9.12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/9.12 (2010); 
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3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violation of Section 

5/9.12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.12 (2010); 

4. Assessing against the Respondent a civil penalty of I Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($50,000.00) for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, and an additional civil 

penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, including attorney, expert witness and 

consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

O(Counsei: 

George D. Theophilos 
Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Bureau 
69 W. Washington, Suite 1800 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 814-6986 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
ex reI. LISA MADIGAN, 
Attorney General of the State of Illinois 

MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
Environmental Enforcement/ 
Asbestos Litigation Division 

/" --:-' :--=-~ 
/ 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, George Theophilos, an Assistant Attorney General, do certify that a true and correct 
copy of the Complaint and Notice of Filing were sent by certified mail with return receipt 
requested to the persons listed on the Notice ofFi on on December 20100 

BY: 
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